
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Community & Children's Services Committee 

 
Date: WEDNESDAY, 20 JULY 2022 

Time: 4.00 pm 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

 
Members: Ruby Sayed (Chair) 

Helen Fentimen (Deputy Chair) 
Joanna Tufuo Abeyie 
Deputy John Absalom 
Caroline Addy 
Munsur Ali 
Jamel Banda 
Matthew Bell 
James Bromiley-Davis 
Anne Corbett 
Aaron Anthony Jose Hasan D'Souza 
Mary Durcan 
Sophie Anne Fernandes 
Deputy John Fletcher 
Deputy Marianne Fredericks 
Steve Goodman OBE 
John Griffiths 
Alderman Gregory Jones QC 
 

Laura Jørgensen 
Florence Keelson-Anfu 
Alderman Alastair King  
Frankie Leach 
Natasha Maria Cabrera Lloyd-Owen 
Alderman Ian David Luder 
Alderman Bronek Masojada 
Timothy James McNally 
Benjamin Murphy 
Deputy Susan Pearson 
Matt Piper 
Henrika Priest 
Jason Pritchard 
Naresh Hari Sonpar 
Ceri Wilkins 
Deputy Philip Woodhouse 
 

Enquiries: julie.mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 
 

Accessing the virtual public meeting 
https://youtu.be/R_0sWnTvAGA 

 
Members of the public can observe this virtual public meeting at the below link: 

 
A recording of the public meeting will be available via the above link following the end of 
the public meeting for up to one municipal year. Please note: Online meeting recordings 
do not constitute the formal minutes of the meeting; minutes are written and are available 
on the City of London Corporation’s website. Recordings may be edited, at the discretion 
of the proper officer, to remove any inappropriate material. 

 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack

https://youtu.be/R_0sWnTvAGA


2 
 

AGENDA 
 

Part 1 - Public Reports 
 
1. APOLOGIES 

 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 

 
 

3. MINUTES 
 

 To agree the minutes of the previous Committee meeting. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 5 - 12) 

 
4. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS -  TO FOLLOW 

For Information 
 
 

5. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT - UPDATE ON 5 YEAR PLAN AND 30 YEAR 
FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS 

 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 13 - 28) 

 
6. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 

 
 

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
 

8. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 MOTION - That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of 
Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
 

 For Decision 
  

 
Part 2 - Non-Public Reports 

 
9. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 
 

 To agree the non-public minutes of the previous Committee meeting. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 29 - 32) 

 



3 
 

10. LONG TERM MODEL FOR THE CITY MENTAL HEALTH STREET TRIAGE 
 

 Report of the Director of Public Health. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 33 - 74) 

 
11. ISLEDON HOUSE INFILL REPORT - GATEWAY 5 - ISSUES REPORT 
 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 75 - 106) 

 
12. YORK WAY ESTATE PROVISION OF SOCIAL HOUSING - GATEWAY 5 - 

AUTHORITY TO START WORK 
 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 107 - 178) 

 
13. ROUGH SLEEPING ASSESSMENT CENTRE - REQUEST FOR A DELEGATED 

AUTHORITY AT GATEWAY 5 
 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services and City Surveyor. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 179 - 180) 

 
14. INSTALLATION OF SPRINKLERS IN SOCIAL HOUSING BLOCKS - GATEWAY 5 - 

ISSUES REPORT 
 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 181 - 210) 

 
15. SUMNER BUILDINGS AND AVONDALE SQUARE 
 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 211 - 238) 

 
16. STAGE ONE PROCUREMENT - LEISURE SERVICES - TO FOLLOW 
 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services. 
 

 For Decision 
  

 
17. GREAT ARTHUR HOUSE CURTAIN WALL - TO FOLLOW 
 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services. 
 

 For Decision 
 

  
 



4 
 

18. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
 

19. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 
WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 
 



COMMUNITY & CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 8 June 2022  
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Community & Children's Services Committee held at 
Committee Rooms, West Wing, Guildhall on Wednesday, 8 June 2022 at 2.30 pm 

 
Present 
 
Members: 
Ruby Sayed (Chairman) 
Helen Fentimen (Deputy Chairman) 
Deputy John Absalom 
Munsur Ali 
Jamel Banda 
Matthew Bell 
James Bromiley-Davis 
Anne Corbett 
Mary Durcan 
Deputy John Fletcher 
Deputy Marianne Fredericks 
 
In attendance (on line): 
Ceri Wilkins 
Benjamin Murphy 
 

John Griffiths 
Florence Keelson-Anfu 
Timothy James McNally 
Deputy Susan Pearson 
Henrika Priest 
Jason Pritchard 
Naresh Hari Sonpar 
Deputy Philip Woodhouse 
 

 
Officers: 
Andrew Carter - Director of Community and Children's Services 

Julie Fittock - City Surveyor's Department 

Mark Jarvis - Chamberlain's Department 

Julie Mayer - Town Clerk's Department 

Chandni Tanna - Town Clerk’s (Communications) 

Paul Murtagh - Community and Children's Services  

Chris Pelham - Community and Children's Services 

Teresa Shortland - Community and Children's Services 

Ellie Ward - Community and Children's Services Department 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
Apologies were received from Joanna Abeyie, Caroline Addy, Aaron D’Souza, 
Steve Goodman, Alderman Gregory Jones, Alderman Alastair King, Alderman 
Ian Luder, Alderman Bronek Masojada, Benjamin Murphy (joined via Teams) 
and Ceri Wilkins (joined via Teams). 
 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
Sophie Fernandes was expected to join the meeting later and would be 
declaring a non-pecuniary interest by virtue of her position as a Governor of 
Guildhall School (agenda item 7). 
 

3. MINUTES  
RESOLVED, that – the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting 
held on 25 April 2022 be approved, subject to correcting Ceri Wilkins’ name 
and recording Philip Woodhouse as having submitted apologies but joined the 
meeting remotely. 
 

4. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS  
The Committee received the outstanding actions list and noted that, in 
accordance with the recommendations in the Lisvane Governance Review, 
reports ‘for information only’ had been circulated in a separate pack.   
 

5. UPDATES FROM THE SUB COMMITTEES  
The Chairman of the various Sub Committees highlighted key points from the 
recent meetings. The full sets of minutes from these sub committees are 
available at the link below.    
Committee structure - Modern Council (cityoflondon.gov.uk) 

Members  noted that these updates would continue on a regular basis.  The 

Chair advised that the Committee would receive a presentation on the Safer 

City Partnership following its restructure. 

 
6. APPOINTMENTS TO SUB COMMITTEES  

The Committee received a report of the Town Clerk in respect of governance 
arrangements for the Committee’s various Sub Committees and the remaining 
appointments.  Members noted the expressions of interest received by the 
Town Clerk after the last meeting and, in the interests of democracy, they had 
been opened up again for nominations.    
 
In respect of the Housing Management and Almshouses Sub Committee, there 
had been three expressions of interest for one remaining place.  The 
Committee agreed to expand the Membership to allow ten Members, rather 
than eight, in addition to the Chair and Deputy Chair of the Grand Committee.    
 
Members noted that the Integrated Care Partnership Board was in transition 
from the former Integrated Commissioning Board, as part of an NHS 
restructure. The Deputy Chairman advised that the new arrangements would 
continue the current neighbourhood/place based focus and senior posts were 
being recruited to.  The current Clinical Commission Group (CCG) would 
cease, and Members would receive an update on new arrangements and 
leadership in due course.   
 
In terms of the composition and governance arrangements of the Sub 
Committees, the Chair suggested and Members agreed, that this matter should 
be considered at a Members’ ‘Away Day’, noting that the Housing Management 

Page 6

https://democracy.cityoflondon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1


and Almshouses Sub Committee was subject to the recommendations of the 
Lisvane Governance Review, and might become a Grand Committee in its own 
right. 
 
RESOLVED, that – the remaining appointments to the Sub Committees be 
agreed as follows: 
 

1. Henrika Priest, Jamel Banda and Susan Pearson be appointed to the 
Housing Management and Almshouses Sub Committee. 

 
2. Benjamin Murphy be appointed to the Safeguarding Sub Committee. 

 
3. Ceri Wilkins be appointed to the Integrated Commissioning Sub 

Committee 
 
Naresh Sonpar be appointed as the Community and Children’s Services 
Committee’s representative on the Education Board. 
 

7. TO APPOINT A LOCAL AUTHORITY GOVERNOR TO THE ALDGATE 
SCHOOL  
Members noted that there had been one expression of interest, from Jason 
Pritchard.   Mr Pritchard had submitted a statement in support of his nomination 
before the meeting.   Being the only Member expressing a willingness to 
service, it was RESOLVED, that – Jason Pritchard be appointed as the Local 
Authority Governor to the Aldgate School.   
 
Mr Munsur Ali  was thanked for his contribution over the past 4 years as the LA 
Governor of the Aldgate School.  Members noted that Mr Ali had stood down to 
focus on the School’s cultural offer in the City and Members wished him well in 
this venture.   
 

8. AFFORDABLE FOOD PROVISION IN THE CITY OF LONDON  
The Committee received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s 
Services in respect of affordable food provision in the City of London and a food 
pantry model, which is being explored.  
 
During the discussion on this matter, the following points were noted: 
 
1. Supermarkets in the City tend to cater more for officer workers than family 

household budgets.  
 
2. Some ethnic groups have specific dietary requirements and are being 

adversely affected by the increase in cooking oil prices.   
 
3. Foodbanks are running out of supplies as people cannot afford to donate. 

London Plus have been working with foodbanks in London and might be 
able to offer advice. 

 
4. In terms of communications,  Members noted that Sylheti is more widely 

spoken in the UK than Bengali. Whilst Ward Members are very happy to 

Page 7



assist residents with  language/reading obstacles, they would like them to 
feel more empowered.  

 
5. The Director reminded Members that the First Love Foundation, which 

had been appointed to run the food bank, do not have the same 
communications issues in Tower Hamlets as have been perceived in the 
City.  The previous report on this matter  set out the issues concerning the 
lack of data, due to GDPR implications, and how need could be 
measured.  

 
6. The Committee received regular updates on poverty levels in the City, and 

this had been covered in a recent public health ‘for information’ report. 
 
7. At a recent presentation, the Communication Director had been asked to 

carry out a City-wide survey and the Resource Allocation Sub Committee 
had agreed the funding, in principle.  The responses from the survey will 
be captured in the next iteration of this report, which will link in to other 
work underway on understanding poverty and need in the City of London.   

 
8. Officers would be visiting a pantry set up via this franchise in Peckham, to 

look at their supply infrastructure. It was suggested that St Luke’s 
Community Centre could also offer advice.  A Member, who is also a 
Trustee at St Luke’s,  offered to raise this at their next meeting.   

 
9. As the proposal is for a food club, and not a food bank, this will remove 

some of the stigma, as people will be contributing as part of a community 
and can help to run the service.   Supermarkets cannot offer this, and it 
would take considerable time to get another supermarket in the City. 

 
10. Peer researchers would be working with residents in the East, starting in 

mid-July, and Members would receive a report at the November meeting 
of the Committee.  The Director advised that, in the interim, there would 
be extra communications about food support.  Members were concerned 
about the rise in energy prices in the Autumn, so the City Corporation 
would need to be ready.   

 
11. The Director agreed to feed back in terms of what might be possible and 

realistic in terms of a Food Strategy, within current resources and the 
Terms of Reference of this Committee, and whether this could be 
expanded into a Poverty Strategy, as part of the wider work being 
undertaken on poverty. 

 
RESOLVED, that – the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



9. REVENUE OUTTURN 2021/22 - COMMUNITY AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
COMMITTEE (CITY FUND)  
The Committee received a joint report of the Director of Community and 
Children’s Services and the Chamberlain, which compared the 2021/22 
revenue outturn for the non-Housing Revenue Account (HRA) services, 
overseen by the Community and Children’s Services Committee, with the final 
agreed budget for the year. The report stated that the Director of Community 
and Children’s Services local risk budget was overspent by 249k, with an 
overspend on all risks including recharges of £1m. Members noted that,  due to 
this adverse variance on local risk, there will be no requests for carry forwards 
this year for purposes of this Committee.  
 
During the discussion on this item, the following points were noted: 

1. The Director meets regularly with the Chamberlain in respect of high cost 

placements and the pressures on the Director’s Local Risk Budget.   A 

higher overspend had been forecast but this had been reduced by savings 

achieved elsewhere.    

2. The Committee would receive a budget estimate report towards the end of 

this calendar year.  This Committee is responsible for overspends of the 

Director’s Local Risk but also needs to be of aware of pressures on the 

central risk. 

3. The overspend of 632k in the Central Risk Budget relates to the 

unaccompanied asylum seeker budget.  Numbers in the 18-25 year group 

are rising, and the Home Office grant doesn’t cover the City Corporation’s 

obligations to these individuals.  This position has been reported through-

out the year to  the City Corporation’s Finance Committee and  will be 

considered  in the budget setting exercise in the Autumn.  

4. This is a national problem and, despite extensive lobbying, very little 

progress has been made with central government.  The Chair would be 

raising this matter at the Resource Allocation Sub Committee on 17th June.   

5. The Director explained the challenges facing the small team at the City of 

London Corporation; i.e., staffing levels have  increased in response to 

demand but this has increased financial pressures.  The Department seeks 

joined up commissioning with other boroughs wherever possible,  in order 

to achieve economies of scale. 

 
RESOLVED, that – the revenue outturn report for 2021/22 be noted. 
 
 

10. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
A Member requested a report in July or September this year, outlining the 
advantages of  undertaking a voluntary transfer of the whole of the Council’s 
housing stock to a specially created housing association. Specifically, the 
Director was asked to consider Bedford Borough Council’s ‘Bedford Pilgrim’s 

Page 9



Housing Association’ (BPHA) in terms of how the transfer effected in 1989-90 
enabled BPHA to fund comprehensive modernisation programmes. 
 

• The Director suggested that this matter be given further consideration by 

the new Housing Committee.   Members noted that more local 

authorities are now coming out of ALMOs than going into them, and 

HRAs are now allowed to borrow up to prudent levels, which wasn’t the 

case 30 years ago.  

• Members noted that they would receive a report at the July Committee in 

respect of the 5-Year Plan and a 30-year forecast.  The Director 

suggested that Members should consider this report first and be mindful 

of  the reputational risk in moving  social housing to an ALMO without 

the Barbican Estate. 

• Members noted that there had been an all-residents meeting since the 

last Committee, and the new Chair of Policy and Resources is keen to 

hold these meetings more frequently. 

The Director was asked about action taken to recognise Carers Week; 
recognising the difficulties carers face and ensuring that they are visible, valued 
and supported by the City of London Corporation.  An event at the Guildhall 
was also requested, where unpaid carers can discuss issues and celebrate 
successes.  
 

• The Director  welcomed the opportunity to highlighting the valued role of 

unpaid carers and their needs.   The Director also set out the activities 

planned for carers’ week.  

• Members noted that Connexions had been commissioned to support 

unpaid carers, with regular zoom sessions led by the carers.  This 

Committee had also appointed a lead member for Carers at its last 

meeting.   Members would receive an information report in respect of the 

co-production work with carers in July, together with an update on the 

national survey of carers, and a new Strategy was expected in the New 

Year.  The Community and Children’s Services Committee had previously 

invited carers’ group representatives to address them and could do so 

again in the future. 

• The Director stressed that the Department does not have the resources to 

arrange a carers’ event at Guildhall and suggested that Members take this 

forward with the Events Team in Remembrancers.   Members noted that 

there used to be a ‘Carers’ lunch’ before the pandemic, and this was very 

well received, but it should not detract from the support that carers need in 

their day to day lives.   The co-production and new  strategy will cover 

what is possible and sustainable. Members noted that it is also in their gift 

to nominate carers for the ’Freedom of the City’ and if they have joint 

receptions, this encourages support and networking.  

Page 10



• The new Lead Member for Carers had been meeting with groups of 

carers, who are aware of the current strategy and happy to be involved in 

the new one.    One observation is that they have to keep telling their story 

to various agencies, so a more joined up approach would be welcomed.   

The Chairman thanked the new Lead Member for the amount of work she 

has been able to do since being appointed only a month ago.    

• Members also noted the Volunteers Celebration event on Monday 18th 

July  between 6 and 7 pm. 

At 4.20 pm Members agreed to extend the meeting. 

 
11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  

The Chairman agreed to accept one item of urgent business. 
  
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Community and 
Children’s Services, which sought approval of a standard protocol for the City of 
London Corporation (the City) to ensure compliance with the consultation 
requirements under S105 of the Housing Act 1985.  
 
RESOLVED, that  - the attached standard protocol for the City, to ensure 
compliance with the consultation requirements under S105 of the Housing Act 
1985, be approved. 
 

12. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
 
Item no   Paragraph no (s) 
13-18    3 
 
 

13. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES  
RESOLVED, that – the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 25th April 
2022 be approved. 
 

14. CHARITIES REVIEW RECOMMENDATIONS - THE CITY OF LONDON 
ALMSHOUSES (REGISTERED CHARITY NUMBER: 1005857)  
The Committee considered and approved a report of the Comptroller and City 
Solicitor. 
 
 

15. REQUEST FOR A DELEGATED AUTHORITY: HOUSING REVENUE 
ACCOUNT (HRA) COMMERCIAL TENANTS: IMPLICATIONS OF THE 
COMMERCIAL RENT (CORONAVIRUS) BILL ON OUTSTANDING 
ARREARS  
The Committee considered and approved a report of the City Surveyor. 
 

Page 11



16. SOUTHWARK ESTATES WINDOW REPLACEMENT AND COMMON PARTS 
REDECORATIONS - PAKEMAN HOUSE, STOPHER HOUSE AND SUMNER 
BUILDINGS - GATEWAY 5 AUTHORITY TO START WORK  
The Committee considered and approved a report of the Director of Community 
and Children’s Services. 
 

17. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
There were no questions whilst the public were excluded. 
 

18. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
One item was noted whilst the public were excluded. 
 

 
 
The meeting ended at 4.40 pm 
 
 
 

 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: julie.mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 12



 

1 
 

Committee: Dated: 

Community and Children's Services Committee 
Resource Allocation Sub (Policy & Resources) Committee 
 

20 July 2022 
15 July 2022 
 

Subject: 
Housing Revenue Account - Update on 5 Year Plan and 30 
year financial projections 

Public 

Which Outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate 
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly? 

1,2,3,4,5,8,9,10,11 & 
12 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or capital 
spending? 

No 

If so, how much? N/A 

What is the source of funding? N/A 

Has the funding source been agreed with the 
Chamberlain’s Department? 

N/A 

Report of:  
The Chamberlain 
Director of Community & Children’s Services 

For Decision 

Report Author: 
Mark Jarvis, Head Of Finance, Chamberlains and  
Paul Murtagh, Assistant Director Barbican & Property 
Services 

 

 

Summary 

 

This report presents an update on the 5-year finance plan for the Housing Revenue 

Account (HRA) and sets out financial projections for the 30-year period. It outlines the 

key risks and challenges over the forthcoming period and presents two options to 

ensure the HRA retains positive reserves going forward. 

 

• A very significant investment in the existing HRA housing stock (including major 

works to windows, heating systems and roof replacements, installation of sprinklers 

and fire doors) is planned over the period. 

• This investment will require planned borrowing of up to £30m from City Fund to 

finance, as provided for in the Corporations Medium Term Financial Plan. 

• Revenue reserve balances, previously predicted to be low during the period, are 

now projected to go into deficit from the end of 2023-24 as forecasts of additional 

income from new build units have been pushed back and inflation forecasts have 

been increased. Reserves begin to recover in the final year 2025/26. 

• Therefore, there will need to be action to either reduce the cost base in these years 

and/or to delay where possible the major works programme and so reduce interest 

charges and capital repayments (Option 1).  

• A further option, to fund the £15.0m fire safety works outside the HRA envelope 

from City Cash (£5.0m) and City Fund (£10.0m), is set out in Appendix A and would 

mean that the expected revenue reserves remain in surplus for the period (Option 

2). Half of the City Fund allocation would be on the basis of being ultimately repaid, 

potentially from the value of property surplus to housing requirements. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



 

2 
 

• The 30-year financial projections show the return of available funding for new major 

works initiatives after the end of the initial five year period. 

• The three key risks to the 5-year plan remain as follows: 

o Delays to income generating new build rental housing stock  – since the 

last report, the effect of the judicial review process the Sydenham Hill 

development means it is now not expected to contribute income until 

2025/26. Further delays on this or the York Way development would 

further put into question the viability of proceeding with major works at 

the pace set out in this report. 

o Where the Housing team have been able to predict exceptional 

construction cost increases in the major works projects, this has been 

reflected in the report. An example of this would be the windows projects 

where a general uplift has been applied to the remaining blocks to be 

tendered - and the tendered costs have been fairly close to that uplifted 

cost.  

o There is a  risk that our ability to recover costs from leaseholders for 

major works carried out on their homes (window replacements in 

particular), will have an  adverse impact on the HRA, given the  outcome 

of the Great Arthur House cladding case.  

 

 

Recommendation 

 

i) Members are asked to review and note the following adverse implications 
of the latest 5-year financial plan for the HRA and the 30-year financial 
projections: 
 

ii) that the HRA is currently projected to go into deficit by the end of 2023-24  
and will need to either (Option 1) review and reduce its cost base and/or 
review the overall affordability and timing of existing major works 
commitments or (Option 2) seek to fund the capital fire safety works at a 
cost of up to £15.0m outside the HRA envelope from £5.0m City Cash and 
£10.0m City Fund, of which half would be on the basis of being ultimately 
repaid, potentially from the value of property surplus to housing 
requirements.. Additionally an external review should be carried out to 
suggest areas of potential savings to enable longer-term remodelling of the 
HRA and  ensure its ongoing financial viability. 
 

iii) there remains a risk of delays to the delivery of new build projects at 
Sydenham Hill and York Way causing further loss of related rental income. 
 

iv) further remaining risks include significant construction inflation above 
current levels of provision and the potential for non-recovery of leaseholder 
elements of the cost of planned major works given the   outcome to the 
Great Arthur House cladding case.. 
 

Page 14



 

3 
 

v) That the 30-year financial projections show headroom for new major works 
programme begins to emerge from 2025/26 under Option 2 as the revenue 
position recovers.    

 
 

 

 

 

Main Report 

 

Introduction 

 
1. The HRA is ringfenced by legislation which means that the account is financially 

self-supporting. Although the “Capital” Account is not ringfenced by law, the 
respective financial positions of the HRA and the City Fund has meant that capital 
expenditure is financed without placing a burden on the use of City Fund resources. 
All HRA related capital expenditure continues to be funded from the HRA, including 
the Major Repairs Reserve and certain capital receipts from sales of HRA assets, 
with homeowners making their appropriate contributions. In practice, therefore, the 
capital account is also ringfenced. 
 

2. This report sets out an update to the latest five-year forecast of revenue and capital 
(major repairs reserve) previously set out in the report to Community & Children’s 
Services Committee on 17th December 2021. 

 
3. The main movements on the Revenue position since the last report are as follows: 

  

• The start of the income stream for Sydenham Hill has slipped one year to 
2025/26 due to delays caused by the judicial review process. 

• Expected annual rental income from York Way has been revised upwards 
from £500k to £648k but has slipped 6 months to September 2024. 

• Inflation for both income and expenditure has been updated to 5% for 
2022/23 and 2023/24 before returning to 2% for the period beyond. 

 
4. The main movements on the major works (capital) position since the last report are 

as follows: 

 

• The outcome of the Great Arthur House cladding case has meant that the 

burden of funding £4m of works that can no longer be recovered from 

leaseholders has to be factored in to the HRA borrowing requirement. 

• York Way and Middlesex Street replacement heating project cost have 

increased. This is due to industrywide increases in material and labour 

costs. 

• Crescent House and Cullum Welch heating project costs have decreased 

subject to a review on the heating provision for the blocks and, ultimately on 

the window solutions applied.  

• George Elliston & Eric Wilkins costs have reduced with a concentration on 

refurbishment and retrofit solutions. Climate Action Strategy (CAS) and 

Page 15



 

4 
 

Social Housing Decarbonisation Funding (SHDF) could help support subject 

to a successful application.  

• Roof replacements have seen a delay whilst they are combined with 

windows projects. A saving could be achieved by combining the work in 

terms of delivery costs. 

• Golden Lane Windows forecasted costs set to increase significantly 

dependent on the final applied solutions (refurbishment against replacement 

triple glazed). CAS and SHDF funding could potentially support this. 

• Great Arthur House Compartmentation Project cost reduced following 

implementation of sprinklers in the block. 

   

Five Year HRA Revenue Account Projections 

5. Table 1 below shows the updated 5 Year Plan for the Housing Revenue Account. 

 

 
 

TABLE 1 - HRA 5 Year Projections Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27

Income

Rent Dwellings 11,495 12,357 12,766 13,897 14,575

Car Parking 651 684 697 711 725

Baggage Stores 133 140 143 146 149

Commercial 1,672 1,755 1,790 1,826 1,863

Community Facilities 99 101 103 105 107

Service Charge 2,049 2,151 2,194 2,238 2,283

Other 4 5 5 5 5

TOTAL Income 16,103 17,193 17,698 18,928 19,706

Expenditure

Repairs & Maintenance (3,125) (3,281) (3,347) (3,414) (3,482)

Premises, support & supplementary revenue projects (831) (872) (890) (907) (925)

Tech services + City Surveyor costs (1,616) (1,697) (1,731) (1,765) (1,801)

Supervision & management (4,429) (4,650) (4,743) (4,838) (4,935)

Specialised Support Services (2,749) (2,886) (2,944) (3,003) (3,063)

TOTAL Exp (12,749) (13,387) (13,654) (13,927) (14,206)

Loan Charges - Interest - 2% (70) (527) (612) (616) (531)

Capital Repayment (4% Minimum Revenue Provision) (140) (1,054) (1,224) (1,231) (1,062)

Total (210) (1,582) (1,836) (1,847) (1,593)

TOTAL Net Income 3,143 2,225 2,208 3,153 3,907

TSFR TO MRR (Depreciation) (3,000) (3,100) (3,200) (3,300) (3,400)

Surplus/ (Deficit) In Year 143 (875) (992) (147) 507

Bal b/f 82 225 (650) (1,642) (1,789)

Bal c/f 225 (650) (1,642) (1,789) (1,281)

Page 16



 

5 
 

6. Revenue reserves are forecast to go into deficit from the end of 2023-24 and 
remain over £1m in deficit until they begin to recover at the end of 2026/27. The 
majority of the change from previous forecasts is as result of the slippage in rental 
income from new build projects, the cost of servicing the additional £4m debt as a 
result of the Great Arthur House Cladding legal decision, the assumption of 
increased inflation of 5% in the first two years and slightly reduced service charge 
recovery calculations. 

 
 

Major Repairs Reserve & City Fund Loan 

 

7. Table 2 below sets out the movements on the Major Repairs Reserve and the City 
Fund loan over the period. Borrowing is expected to peak in 2024-25 before falling 
in subsequent years, however this assumes that there will be no further call on the 
major repairs programme in those years and there are no exceptional construction 
inflation costs beyond those already allowed for.  
  

 
 

 

8. HRA borrowing to fund the major repairs works is set to increase to just below 

£31.0m by the end of 2024/25 before falling back as loan repayments increase, . 

TABLE 2 - MAJOR REPAIRS RESERVE Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2025-26

MRR B/F 231 253 49 165 465

Depn/tsfr from Rev 3,000 3,100 3,200 3,300 3,400

Net Capital Financing (see Table 4) (25,977) (8,604) (4,484)

Loan Advanced/(Repaid) 23,000 5,300 1,400 (3,000) (3,500)

MRR C/F 253 49 165 465 365

CITY FUND LOAN

Loan Balance B/F 3,500 26,360 30,606 30,781 26,550

Loan Advanced/(Repaid) 23,000 5,300 1,400 (3,000) (3,500)

HRA Minimum Repayments (4%) (140) (1,054) (1,224) (1,231) (1,062)

Loan balance C/F 26,360 30,606 30,781 26,550 21,988

Page 17



 

6 
 

Note the initial borrowing balance of £3.5m  includes the cost of funding the 

leaseholder element of the Great Arthur House cladding works.  

 
Forecast Income 

 

9. Additional dwellings rental income streams have also been factored in as set out 
in Table 3 below.  

 

 
  

• The delayed new flats at COLPAI are expected to deliver an annual rent roll of 

£450k and this income has been included from January 2023.                    

• New flats at Sydenham Hill, generating income in the region of £801k annually 

in 2026-27, from a revised date of October 2025, having again slipped due to 

the ongoing judicial review process. 

• New flats at York Way are also projected to begin generating additional rental 

income of £648k annually from July 2024. 
 

Revenue Expenditure 

 
10. Existing costs have been uplifted by inflation of 5% in the first two years of the 

forecast with this number falling back to 2% in subsequent periods. Prudently, no 
long-term savings from any potential restructures or costs savings on repairs as a 
result of the major works programme have been factored into the projections, 
however the overall cost base will need to be reviewed given the latest overall 

TABLE 3 -  Dwellings Income Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27

Income

Existing Rent roll 11,340 11,907 12,145 12,388 12,636

COLPAI (66 units) 155 450 459 468 478

Sydenham Hill (110 units) 0 0 0 393 801

York Way (91 units) 0 0 162 648 661

TOTAL 11,495 12,357 12,766 13,897 14,575

Page 18



 

7 
 

projections. In terms of Option 1, annual savings of £550k would be required to 
bring the HRA back into balance. An external review to enable longer-term 
remodelling of the HRA to ensure its ongoing financial viability is recommended. 

 

Major Works Capital Programme  

 

11. The table below summarises the various categories of projects currently underway 

or being planned for which provision has been made in terms of borrowing 

capacity, loan repayments and interest charge within the rolling five-year plan. 

Significant changes since the last report have been identified in both the overall 

costs of some programmes and in the expected phasing of some works. No 

provision has been made for future additional projects that have been identified in 

the latest full, or any new stock condition survey and therefore the capital works 

are expected to complete by the end of 2024/25  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

TABLE 4 Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2022/23

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2023/24

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2024/25

TOTAL COST OF PROJECTS

Decent Homes/Electrical/Water/Lifts 111

Heating 2,030 1,200 0

George/Eric & Other 1,300 0 0

Roofs 4,150 2,700 2,333

Windows 23,572 6,000 6,000

Sprinklers (fire safety) 3,603 1,000 0

Fire Doors (fire safety) 6,000 3,000 1,000

TOTAL Cost of Projects 40,765 13,900 9,333

TOTAL Cost of Projects (without fire safety) 31,162 9,900 8,333

TOTAL FUNDING FROM MRR

Decent Homes/Electrical/Water/Lifts 78 0 0

Heating 1,421 900 0

George/Eric & Other 910 0 0

Roofs 3,550 1,620 1,400

Windows 10,416 2,084 2,084

Sprinklers (fire safety) 3,603 1,000 0

Fire Doors (fire safety) 6,000 3,000 1,000

TOTAL Funding from MRR 25,977 8,604 4,484

TOTAL Funding from MRR (without fire safety) 16,375 4,604 3,484

Page 19



 

8 
 

 
Heating Systems 
 
12. The table below sets out future projections for the completion of current work to 

existing communal heating systems. York Way Estate and Middlesex Street have 
seen an increase against the previously forecasted costs. Crescent House and 
Cullum Welch heating system are largely dependent on other project outcomes 
such as the Windows and Roof Replacement Systems.   
 

 
 
 

Other (inc. George & Eric Refurbishment)  
 
13. The table below sets out future projections for the completion of current plans for 

work including the refurbishment of housing at George Williston & Eric Wilkins 
Houses. George Elliston and Eric Wilkins will pick up where the development 
project has left off with a full refurbishment project for the blocks and is currently 
under survey to build the tender specification.  
 

 
 
Roofs  
 
14. The table below sets out future projections for the completion of current plans for 

work on roofs across the estates. Roofing work set to start on Golden Lane Estate 
as part of the Window Projects. The remaining roofing replacements will be 
procured separately.  

 

 
 

 

HEATING
Core Project TOTAL Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2021/22

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2022/23

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2023/24

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2024/25

TOTAL PROVISIONAL 

ACTUAL 21/22

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2022/23

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2023/24

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2024/25

L5-Crescent House & Cullum House Heating Replacement 266 1,000 1,781 52 1,200

L5-Middlesex Street Estate - Replacement of Heating & Hot Water 1,278 1,000 1,062 1,365

L5-York Way Estate - Replacement of Heating & Hot Water 1,025 365 1,329 665

COST 6,713 2,568 2,365 1,781 5,672 2,443 2,030 1,200
CHARGE TO HRA (after estimated leaseholder ecovery) 4,031 1,710 1,421 900

PREVIOUS FORECAST NEW FORECAST

OTHER (inc George/Eric Refurbishment)
Core Project TOTAL Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2021/22

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2022/23

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2023/24

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2024/25

TOTAL PROVISIONAL 

ACTUAL 21/22

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2022/23

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2023/24

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2024/25

L5-George Elliston & Eric Wilkins Houses Refurbishment 506 1,500 1,500 0 1,300

L5-Housing Manageement System Upgrade 92

L5-Petticoat Tower Stairwells 16 19

L5-Play & Ball Games Areas Refurbishments 237 0 212

L5-Great Arthur House Window Cladding 198 198

L5-Other 11 0 19

COST 4,060 1,060 1,500 1,500 0 1,747 447 1,300 0 0
CHARGE TO HRA (30% leaseholder recovery on George & Eric) 1,747 447 910 0

PREVIOUS FORECAST NEW FORECAST

ROOFS
Core Project TOTAL Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2021/22

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2022/23

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2023/24

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2024/25

TOTAL PROVISIONAL 

ACTUAL 21/22

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2022/23

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2023/24

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2024/25

L5-Roof Replacements - Various Estates 200 6,333 0 1,500 2,700 2,333

L5-Renewal of Flat Roof Coverings - Various Blocks 310 2,350 0 2,650

COST 9,193 510 8,683 0 0 9,183 0 4,150 2,700 2,333
CHARGE TO HRA (40% leaseholder recovery on Roof replacements only) 6,570 0 3,550 1,620 1,400

PREVIOUS FORECAST NEW FORECAST

Page 20



 

9 
 

 
Windows  
 
15. The table below sets out future projections for the completion of current plans for 

work on windows across the estates The budget forecasts were uplifted following 
the competitive tender of Dron House. Resources are now in place to deliver this. 
Window Replacements and Common Parts Redecorations are to be completed on 
the majority of the estates over the next 18 months. These estates have been 
tendered and are about to undergo section 20 consultation and Gateway 5 
approvals in readiness for delivery. Golden Lane is more complex and planning 
applications are being prepared/ submitted with a start on site for Crescent House 
expected in 2023. 

 

 
 

Sprinklers  
 

The table below sets out future projections for the completion of current plans for 
work on installing sprinklers on designated properties across HRA estates. It 
should be noted that the works to sprinklers are being carried out despite not strictly 
being required by health and safety legislation.  A contract is in place to deliver 
sprinklers to all three sites (5 blocks in total).  

 
 
 
 

 
Fire Doors  
 
16. The table below sets out future projections for the completion of current plans to 

install fire doors across HRA estates. Petticoat Tower Fire Doors are completed 
and LOT 1 of the main fire door contract (Holloway and York Way Estates) is due 
to complete summer 2022. Committee have now approved the direct award for the 
remaining estates. Great Arthur House Compartmentation Project budget, 
expected to decrease following a specification change affected by the sprinklers. 

 

WINDOWS
Core Project TOTAL Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2021/22

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2022/23

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2023/24

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2024/25

TOTAL Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2022/23

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2023/24

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2024/25

L5-Dron House Windows Replacement 1,579 0

L5-Golden Lane Windows Replacement 1,054 3,094 3,998 8,383 6,000 6,000

L5-Holloway Estate Windows Replacement 1,136 2,017 3,825

L5-Southwark Estate Windows Replacement 753 5,125 5,900

L5-Sydenham Hill Windows Replacement 320 528 1,218

L5-William Blake Windows Replacement 960 1,000 2,333

L5-Windsor House Windows Replacement 824 764 1,913

L5-Avondale Square Windows Major Refurbishment 6 0

COST 23,156 6,631 12,528 3,998 0 37,582 23,572 6,000 6,000
CHARGE TO HRA (various % leaseholder recovery, Plus £5m Climate Action / Grants) 15,762 10,416 2,084 2,084

PREVIOUS FORECAST NEW FORECAST

SPRINKLERS
Core Project TOTAL Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2021/22

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2022/23

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2023/24

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2024/25

TOTAL Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2022/23

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2023/24

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2024/25

L5-Installation of Sprinklers - Avondale Square Estate 886 893 1,779

L5-Installation of Sprinklers - Great Arthur House 17 870 886 1000

L5-Installation of Sprinklers - Petticoat Tower 227 552 779

L5-Installation of Sprinklers in Social Housing Tower Blocks 124 35 0 159

COST 3,603 1,253 2,350 0 0 4,795 3,603 1,000 0
CHARGE TO HRA (no leaseholder recovery) 4,795 3,603 1,000 0

PREVIOUS FORECAST NEW FORECAST

Page 21



 

10 
 

 
 
Financial Risks 

 

17. The key risks to the affordability of the current five year plan are as follows : 

• Further delay to new build rental income. 

• Additional construction cost inflation on major works above that already 

provided for in individual project forecasts. 

• Non-recoverability of leaseholder contributions to the cost of major works. 

The programme assumes full recoverability of the leaseholder element of 

the projects to be undertaken.  

• The impact of the rising cost of living may well affect the level of long term 

income able to be generated by HRA commercial properties and the overall 

level of bad debt provision required. 

 

30 Year Financial Projections 

 

18. Appendix B shows the details of the 30-year projections for the HRA. The 
projections are prudent and do not include any expected additional income from 
new building developments beyond those already included in this report. This gives 
the likely headroom available for investing in major works on existing housing stock 
over the extended period as set out in the graph below. Available funding rises 
from £3m per annum in 2027-28 to over £8m per annum from 2048-49. 
 

.  
 

 

 

FIRE DOORS
Core Project TOTAL Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2021/22

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2022/23

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2023/24

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2024/25

TOTAL PROVISIONAL 

ACTUAL 21/22

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2022/23

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2023/24

Project 

Manager 

Forecast 

2024/25

L5-Petticoat Towers - Fire Safety Doors 123 0 153

L5-Fire Safety Doors - Great Arthur House 0 2,113 0 1,000

L5-Fire Door Replacements - Various Estates 1,311 5,565 2,304 0 22 6,000 3,000

COST 11,417 1,435 7,678 2,304 0 10,175 175 6,000 3,000 1,000
CHARGE TO HRA (no leaseholder recovery) 10,175 175 6,000 3,000 1,000

PREVIOUS FORECAST NEW FORECAST

Page 22



 

11 
 

5 Year Financial Projections without Fire Safety Works 

 

 

19.  Appendix A shows the details of the 5-year projections for the HRA without the 

costs of the Fire Safety Works i.e. Sprinklers £4.8m (para 16 above) and Fire Doors 

£10.2m (para 17 above), giving an overall  £15.0m initial  funding request from City 

Cash and City Fund.  The removal of these costs from the HRA under Option 2 

mean that reserves remain positive throughout the projected period and by the end 

of 2026-27 stand at £2.8m, although additional revenue savings of £250k are 

required from 2023-24.. 

 

Conclusion 

 

20. This report presents the latest iteration of the five-year plan for the HRA and 

outlines the key risks to the revenue reserves position. It sets out two potential 

Options to enable these projections to be brought back into balance. 

 
Mark Jarvis 
Head Of Finance, Chamberlains Department 
T: 020 7332 1221 
E: Mark.Jarvis@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 
Paul Murtagh, 
Assistant Director Barbican & Property Services 
T: 020 7332 3015 
E: Paul.Murtagh@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23

mailto:Mark.Jarvis@cityoflondon.gov.uk
mailto:Murtagh@cityoflondon.gov.uk


 

12 
 

 
APPENDIX A – HRA 5 YEAR PROJECTION WITHOUT FIRE SAFETY WORKS (OPTION 2) 
 
The projections below do not include the cost of supporting the £15.0m of major works in 

respect of the fire doors and sprinklers 

 

TABLE 1A - HRA 5 Year Projections Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27

Income

Rent Dwellings 11,495 12,357 12,766 13,897 14,575

Car Parking 651 684 697 711 725

Baggage Stores 133 140 143 146 149

Commercial 1,672 1,755 1,790 1,826 1,863

Community Facilities 99 101 103 105 107

Service Charge 2,049 2,151 2,194 2,238 2,283

Other 4 5 5 5 5

TOTAL Income 16,103 17,193 17,698 18,928 19,706

Expenditure

Repairs & Maintenance (3,125) (3,281) (3,347) (3,414) (3,482)

Premises, support & supplementary revenue projects (831) (872) (890) (907) (925)

Tech services + City Surveyor costs (1,616) (1,697) (1,731) (1,765) (1,801)

Supervision & management (4,429) (4,650) (4,743) (4,838) (4,935)

Revenue Savings/Efficiencies to be identified 250 250 250 250

Specialised Support Services (2,749) (2,886) (2,944) (3,003) (3,063)

TOTAL Exp (12,749) (13,137) (13,404) (13,677) (13,956)

Loan Charges - Interest - 2% (60) (322) (345) (331) (258)

Capital Repayment (4% Minimum Revenue Provision) (120) (643) (689) (662) (515)

Total (180) (965) (1,034) (993) (773)

TOTAL Net Income 3,173 3,091 3,260 4,257 4,977

TSFR TO MRR (Depreciation) (3,000) (3,100) (3,200) (3,300) (3,400)

Surplus/ (Deficit) In Year 173 (9) 60 957 1,577

Bal b/f 82 255 247 307 1,264

Bal c/f 255 247 307 1,264 2,841

Page 24



 

13 
 

 
 
 
The loans to the HRA would peak at £17.2m in 2023-24 before declining without the need to 

support fire safety works costs. 
 

 
 
 

 

TABLE 2 - MAJOR REPAIRS RESERVE OB Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2025-26

MRR B/F 387 212 508 225 525

Depn/tsfr from Rev 3,000 3,100 3,200 3,300 3,400

Net Capital Financing (see Table 4) (16,375) (4,604) (3,484)

Loan Advanced/(Repaid) 13,200 1,800 0 (3,000) (3,500)

MRR C/F 212 508 225 525 425

CITY FUND LOAN

Loan Balance B/F 3,000 16,080 17,237 16,547 12,885

Loan Advanced/(Repaid) 13,200 1,800 0 (3,000) (3,500)

HRA Minimum Repayments (4%) (120) (643) (689) (662) (515)

Loan balance C/F 16,080 17,237 16,547 12,885 8,870

Page 25



 

14 
 

 
 
 
APPENDIX B – 30 YEAR PROJECTIONS 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 2030-31 2031-32

Income 16,103 17,193 17,698 18,928 19,706 20,101 20,503 20,913 21,331 21,757

Expenditure (12,749) (13,137) (13,404) (13,677) (13,956) (14,235) (14,520) (14,810) (15,106) (15,408)

Loan Charges - Interest - 2% (60) (322) (345) (331) (258) (177) (170) (163) (157) (151)

Capital Repayment (4% Minimum Revenue Provision) (120) (643) (689) (662) (515) (355) (341) (327) (314) (301)

Transfer to MRR (3,000) (3,100) (3,200) (3,300) (3,400) (4,468) (4,557) (4,649) (4,741) (4,836)

Surplus/ (Deficit) In Year 173 (9) 60 957 1,577 865 915 963 1,012 1,061

Bal b/f 82 255 247 307 1,264 2,841 3,707 4,621 5,585 6,597

Bal c/f 255 247 307 1,264 2,841 3,707 4,621 5,585 6,597 7,658

MRR B/F 387 212 508 225 525 425 1,393 2,450 3,424 4,306

Depn/tsfr from Rev 3,000 3,100 3,200 3,300 3,400 4,468 4,557 4,649 4,741 4,836

Net Capital Financing (16,375) (4,604) (3,484) 0 0 (3,500) (3,500) (3,675) (3,859) (4,052)

Loan Advanced/(Repaid) 13,200 1,800 0 (3,000) (3,500) 0 0 0 0 0

MRR C/F 212 508 225 525 425 1,393 2,450 3,424 4,306 5,091

CITY FUND LOAN

Loan Balance 3,000 16,080 17,237 16,547 12,885 8,870 8,515 8,175 7,848 7,534

Loan Advanced/(Repaid) 13,200 1,800 0 (3,000) (3,500) 0 0 0 0 0

HRA Minimum Repayments (4%) (120) (643) (689) (662) (515) (355) (341) (327) (314) (301)

Loan balance 16,080 17,237 16,547 12,885 8,870 8,515 8,175 7,848 7,534 7,232

Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

2032-33 2033-34 2034-35 2035-36 2036-37 2037-38 2038-39 2039-40 2040-41 2041-42

Income 22,193 22,636 23,089 23,551 24,022 24,502 24,992 25,492 26,002 26,522

Expenditure (15,717) (16,031) (16,352) (16,679) (17,012) (17,352) (17,699) (18,053) (18,415) (18,783)

Loan Charges - Interest - 2% (145) (139) (133) (128) (123) (118) (113) (109) (104) (100)

Capital Repayment (4% Minimum Revenue Provision) (289) (278) (267) (256) (246) (236) (226) (217) (209) (200)

Transfer to MRR (4,933) (6,032) (6,652) (6,785) (6,921) (7,060) (7,201) (7,345) (7,492) (7,641)

Surplus/ (Deficit) In Year 1,109 157 (315) (297) (280) (263) (247) (232) (217) (203)

Bal b/f 7,658 8,766 8,924 8,609 8,312 8,032 7,769 7,522 7,290 7,073

Bal c/f 8,766 8,924 8,609 8,312 8,032 7,769 7,522 7,290 7,073 6,870

MRR B/F 5,091 5,024 5,806 6,945 7,943 7,864 7,573 7,056 6,401 5,893

Depn/tsfr from Rev 4,933 6,032 6,652 6,785 6,921 7,060 7,201 7,345 7,492 7,641

Net Capital Financing (5,000) (5,250) (5,513) (5,788) (7,000) (7,350) (7,718) (8,000) (8,000) (8,000)

Loan Advanced/(Repaid) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

MRR C/F 5,024 5,806 6,945 7,943 7,864 7,573 7,056 6,401 5,893 5,534

CITY FUND LOAN

Loan Balance 7,232 6,943 6,665 6,399 6,143 5,897 5,661 5,435 5,217 5,009

Loan Advanced/(Repaid) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

HRA Minimum Repayments (4%) (289) (278) (267) (256) (246) (236) (226) (217) (209) (200)

Loan balance 6,943 6,665 6,399 6,143 5,897 5,661 5,435 5,217 5,009 4,808

Page 26



 

15 
 

 

Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

2042-43 2043-44 2044-45 2045-46 2046-47 2047-48 2048-49 2049-50 2050-51 2051-52

Income 27,053 27,594 28,146 28,708 29,283 29,868 30,466 31,075 31,696 32,330

Expenditure (19,158) (19,542) (19,932) (20,331) (20,738) (21,153) (21,576) (22,007) (22,447) (22,896)

Loan Charges - Interest - 2% (96) (92) (89) (85) (82) (78) (75) (72) (69) (67)

Capital Repayment (4% Minimum Revenue Provision) (192) (185) (177) (170) (163) (157) (151) (145) (139) (133)

Transfer to MRR (7,794) (7,950) (8,109) (8,271) (8,437) (8,605) (8,778) (8,953) (9,132) (9,315)

Surplus/ (Deficit) In Year (189) (175) (162) (149) (137) (125) (113) (102) (91) (80)

Bal b/f 6,870 6,681 6,506 6,344 6,195 6,058 5,933 5,820 5,718 5,627

Bal c/f 6,681 6,506 6,344 6,195 6,058 5,933 5,820 5,718 5,627 5,546

MRR B/F 5,534 5,328 5,279 5,388 5,659 6,096 6,201 6,479 6,932 7,564

Depn/tsfr from Rev 7,794 7,950 8,109 8,271 8,437 8,605 8,778 8,953 9,132 9,315

Net Capital Financing (8,000) (8,000) (8,000) (8,000) (8,000) (8,500) (8,500) (8,500) (8,500) (8,500)

Loan Advanced/(Repaid) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

MRR C/F 5,328 5,279 5,388 5,659 6,096 6,201 6,479 6,932 7,564 8,379

CITY FUND LOAN

Loan Balance 4,808 4,616 4,431 4,254 4,084 3,921 3,764 3,613 3,469 3,330

Loan Advanced/(Repaid) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

HRA Minimum Repayments (4%) (192) (185) (177) (170) (163) (157) (151) (145) (139) (133)

Loan balance 4,616 4,431 4,254 4,084 3,921 3,764 3,613 3,469 3,330 3,197

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



Document is Restricted

Page 29

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 33

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 39

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 75

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 83

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 87

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 89

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 93

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 103

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 107

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 113

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 119

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 121

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 143

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 145

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 149

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 155

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 177

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 179

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 181

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 187

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 191

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 195

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 197

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 209

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 211

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 221

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 225

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Housing Revenue Account - Update on 5 Year Plan and 30 year financial projections
	9 Non-Public Minutes
	10 Long term model for the City Mental Health Street Triage
	Mental Health Street Triage Evaluation Master Doc

	11 Isledon House Infill Report - Gateway 5 - Issues Report
	Item 4 -  2022.06.13 Appendix 01 - DE Final - Isleden House - Issues Report - Project Coversheet
	Item 4 -  2022.06.13 Appendix 02 - DE - Isleden House Infill  - Corporate Risk Register
	Item 4 -2022.06.13 Appendix 03 - DE - Cost Book - Issues Report - Isleden House Infill Dev
	Item 4 - 2022.06.13 Appendix 04 - WC LLP - Isleden - Financial Report Nr. 4
	item 4 - 2022.06.13 Appendix 05 - ISLEDEN HOUSE INFILL DEVELOPMENT - Photos

	12 York Way Estate Provision of Social Housing - Gateway 5 - Authority to Start Work
	APPENDIX 1_Project Coversheet_York Way_July_2022
	APPENDIX 2_CRP
	APPENDIX 3_YW Tender Report_Stace LLP
	APPENDIX 4_Drawings
	APPENDIX 5_PT8 Procurement Form
	APPENDIX 6_Construction Programme
	APPENDIX 7_York Way Planning Decision Notice
	APPENDIX 8_Total Project Cost Estimate

	13 Rough Sleeping Assessment Centre - request for a Delegated Authority at Gateway 5
	14 Installation of Sprinklers in Social Housing Blocks - Gateway 5 - Issues Report
	Appendix 1 Sprinklers Project Coversheet - Issues Report
	Copy of Appendix 2 - Risk Register Retrofit sprinklers
	Appendix 3 Retrofit Sprinklers CBIS report
	Appendix 4 Keegan's Cost Report no 4
	Appendix 5 Retrofit Sprinklers Communications Summary

	15 Sumner Buildings and Avondale Square
	Item 7 - APPENDIX A Business Cases
	Item 7 Avondale Square and Sumner Buildings Estate - Soft Market Testing Report 14.10.2021


